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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dsquare Solutions Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit,
total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for not complying with the
requirement of audit trail as stated in (i)(vi) below.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b) above.

g) Reporting on the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, under section
143(3)(i) of the Act is not applicable in view of the exemption available to the Company in
terms of the notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated 13 June 2017 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, read with general circular No. 08/2017 dated 25 July
2017.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a private
company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.
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There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in the note 34 to the financial statements no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 34 to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not

vi.

proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility, however it did not have a feature to log the
enabling/disabling of the audit trail (edit log) feature; accordingly, we are unable to
comment whether the audit log feature was enabled and operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Accordingly, we are unable to
comment whether the audit trail has been tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1
April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the year ended 31 March, 2024.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.008072S)

KETAN VORA

(Partner)

(Membership No. 100459)
(UDIN: 24100459BKFATK3899)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 May, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(iY(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(iY(b) The Property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management
which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(i)(c) The company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting under clause (i)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(i)(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
during the year.

(i)(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
31 March 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii}(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(ii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the
Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions and
hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii)(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year and details
of which are given below:

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Others 75.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

-Others 395.00

Refer Note 8 and 25 of the Financial Statements

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security to any other
entlty during the year.
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(iii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of all the
above mentioned loans and advances in the nature of loans provided, during the year, are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the company’s interest. The company has not made
investments, provided guarantees and gave security.

(iii)(c) In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of
principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation.

(iii)(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company,
there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date.

(iii)(e) No loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the company which has fallen due
during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing
loans given to the same parties.

(iii)(f) The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans which are repayable on
demand details of which are given below:

Particulars Related
Parties
Aggregate of loans/advances in the nature of loans
- Repayable on Demand 395.00
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment Nil
Total 395.00
Percentage of loans/advances in the nature of loans to total loans 100%

Refer Note 8 and 25 of the Financial Statements

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted. The company has not made or provided
investments, guarantees or securities, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) Having regards to the nature of the Company’s business/activities, reporting under clause (vi) of
the order is not applicable.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:
(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State

Insurance, Income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company
have generally been regularly deposited by it with appropriate authorities.
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We have been informed that the provisions of Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, sales
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
on account of disputes as at 31 March 2024.

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the
year.

(ix)(a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting
under clause (ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(ix)(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized term

loans at the beginning of the year and hence reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(ix)(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix)(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.

(x)(a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the year
and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.
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(xi){c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards. The Company is a
private limited company and hence the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, and hence, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
any of its directors or directors of its holding company or persons connected with such directors and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi){a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi)(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group does not have any
core investment company as part of the Group and accordingly reporting under Clause (xvi) (d) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crores or more, or turnover of
rupees one thousand crores of more or a net profit of rupees five crore of more during the
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

/}": &ﬁma-'f?-(r
KETAN VORA

(Partner)

(Membership No. 100459)
(UDIN: 24100459BKFATK3899)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 May, 2024




Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

" As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A |ASSETS
1 |Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 0.43 0.87
(b) Intangible Assets 3 - -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 4 48.34 63.60
(d) Non-Current Tax Assets (net) 5 13.74 15.48
Total Non-Current Assets 62.51 79.95
2 |Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 6 68.38 73.02
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 9.27 13.69
(iii) Loans 8 395.00 320.00
(iv) Other Financial Assets 9 13.63 0.68
(b) Other Current Assets 10 13.73 17.25
Total Current Assets 500.01 424.64
Total Assets 562.52 504.59
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 19.50 19.50
(b) Other Equity 12 525.74 451.37
Total Equity 545.24 470.87
Liabilities
2 |Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 13 3.30 18.89
Total Non-Current Liabilities 3.30 18.89
3 |Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 14
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - -
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 9.35 3.78
enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Other Current Liabilities 15 2.70 2.02
(c) Provisions 13 1.93 9.03
Total Current Liabilities 13.98 14.83
Total Liabilities 17.28 33.72
Total Equity and Liabilities 562.52 504.59
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 38

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 008072S

Ketan Vora

Partner
Membership No.: 100459

Place : M%Mb(k..k
Date : '6 M&j )—024‘

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900TN2006PTCO

Narasimhan K. Swa

Director
DIN: 00219883

Place : POIU M DA
Date : IG—GS‘QOQL\

Srinivasan K. Swamy

Director
DIN: 00505093

Place : fLC®) ba,
Date : L~ OQ ~ Roy




Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

: For the year ended For the year ended
EanHicHiSEs Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
1 ([Revenue From Operations 16 244.58 227.71
2 [Other Income 17 38.44 27.04
3 |Total Income (1+2) 283.02 254.75
Expenses
(a) Employee Benefits Expense 18 166.67 169.78
(b) Other Expenses 19 15.60 37.73
4 |Total Expenses 182.27 207.51
5 |Earnings before depreciation, amortisation and tax (3-4) 100.75 47.24
6 |Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 283 =
7 |Profit Before Tax (5-6) 100.75 47.24
8 |Tax Expense 4
(@) Current tax 9.38 2,71
(b) Deferred tax charge/(credit) 15.70 29.87
Net tax expense 25.08 32.58
9 |Profit for the year (7-8) 75.67 14.66
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expenses)
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (1.74) 1.41
(ii) Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.44 (0.36)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
(ii) Income tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
10 |Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year [A(i-ii)+B(i-ii)] (1.30) 1.05
11 |[Total comprehensive income for the year (9+10) 74,37 15.71
12 |Earnings per equity share of Rs.10 each 21
Basic (in Rs.) 38.81 7.52
Diluted (in Rs.) 38.81 7.52
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1to 38

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 008072S

Qo

]

Ketan Vora

Partner
Membership No.: 100459

Place : MUMBQ.'L
Date : 16 Mo’j 2_02_4

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900TN2006PTC060993

Lt

Narasimhan K. Swamy

Director

DIN: 00219883

Place m\.\mbq’\
Date : \G‘ QQ'QOQL\

Director
DIN: 00505093

Place : PO\ M bql\
Date : ‘6'\0\6’&&&“




Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

A in Rs. Lakhs
N For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before Tax 100.75 47.24
Adjustments for:
Interest Income on loans to related parties (22.68) (24.14)
Interest on Income Tax Refunds (0.95) (2.80)
Expected credit loss - 1.11
Provision written back (0.75) =
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 76.37 21.31
Adjustments for (increase}/decrease in operating assets:
Trade Receivables 4,64 38.49
Other Non Current and Current Assets 3.51 (17.15)
Other Non Current and Current Financial Assets (12.95) (0.67)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade Payables 6.76 (28.97)
Other Non-Current and Current Liabilities 0.68 (1.39)
Non-Current and Current Provisions (24.42) 2.92
Cash Generated from Operations 54.59 14.54
Income Tax (Paid)/Refund {Net of Refunds Received and Interest on Refunds) (6.69) 28.03
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (A) 47.90 42.57
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Loans given to related parties (75.00) (520.00)
Loans repayment received from related parties E: 200.00
Interest Income on loans to related parties 22.68 24.14
Net Cash Flow From/(Used in) Investing Activities (B) (52.32) (295.86)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities - -
Net Cash Flow From Financinag Activities (C) = =
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) (4.42) (253.29)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year {Refer Note 7) 13.69 266.98
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (Refer Note 7} 9.27 13.69

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Flrm Reglstration No.: 0080725

P N g

\
Ketan'Vora

Partner
Membership No.: 100459

Place : MWEQ-;-
Date : l6 Me\j ZOQ—‘(

1to 38

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900TN2006PTC060993

M

Narasimhan K. Swamy

Director
DIN: 00219883

pace : (AALMN'DAL
N6-05-30RuU

Srinivasan K. Swamy

Director
DIN: 00505093

PDIatCE : mumbﬁ(
"¢ 16- 05 -0y




Dsquare Solutions Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Year ended

Year ended

I 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 19.50 19.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year:
- Issue of equity share capital during the year - =
Closing Balance as at end of the year 19.50 19.50

B. Other Equity

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Securities Premium

Retained Earnings

Total

Balance as at 01 April 2022 521.45 (B5.79) 435.66
Profit for the year = 14.66 14.66
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax - 1.05 1.05
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023 - 15.71 15.71

Balance as at 31 March 2023 521.45 (70.08) 451.37
Profit for the year - 75.67 75.67
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax - (1.30) (1.30)
Total compret ive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 - 74.37 74.37
Balance as at 31 March 2024 521.45 4.29 525.74

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0080725

Ketan Vora

Partner
Membership No.: 100459

Place : Mumbod
Date : Lé Maﬂ 7—&?2(1

Note : In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 24 March 2021, re-measurement of defined benefit pians shall be recognised
as a part of retained earnings Accordingly, re-measurement of defined benefit plans has been disclosed as part of retained earnings.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directogs
Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900TN2006PTC060993

Narasimhan K. Swamy
Director
DIN: 00219883

Place : U GL
Pate: | 6~ 0502

Srinivasan K. Swamy

Director
DIN: 00505093

place : N dfMbai
bate 1 16 ~05~2024
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DSQUARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2024

1. General Information

DSquare Solutions Private Limited (the “Company”) as incorporated on 29 August 2006.
The Company is primarily engaged in the Business of developing customer relationship
management solutions using data analytics and providing other customer focused
marketing services.

1.a. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31 March,
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended
and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(together referred to as the “ Financial Statements”).

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') to the extent notified. The Indian Accounting standards
("Ind AS") are prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention, on accrual and going concern basis except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on fair value
of the consideration given in exchange of goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transition between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value for an asset or liability, the Company tables into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the financial statements is
determined on such a basis except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind
AS 116 and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as value in use in IND AS 36.

When measuring the fair value of a financia!l asset or a financial liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels
in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or part using a valuation model
based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.




DSQUARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2024

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved
for issue in accordance with the Resolution passed by the Board of Directors their meeting
held on 16" May 2024.

A. Determination of Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakh, unless otherwise
indicated.

B. Current / Non-Current Classification

Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non-current.

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the foliowing conditions:

1. the asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled in the Company's normal
operating cycle;

2. the assetis intended for sale or consumption;

the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

4. the asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after the
reporting period;

5. theassetis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used
to settle a liability tor atleast twelve months after the reporting date; in the case of a
liability, the Company does not have an unconditionatl right to defer settlement of the
liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting date.

w

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

C. Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

In applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 1.b below,
the directors are required to make judgments (other than those involving estimations)
that have significant impact on the amounts recognhised and to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from othersources.

The Management believes that the estimates and associated assumptions made in the
preparation of these financial statements are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2024

The following are the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty, and critical judgements
in applying accounting policies:

. Determination of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets .

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are based on the life
prescribed in Schedule Il of the Act. In cases, where the useful lives are different from those
prescribed in Schedule Il, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the nature
of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past
history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers' warranties and
maintenance support.

. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation,
vested future benefits, attrition rate and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined
by reference to market yields of the government bonds at the end of the reporting period.
The period of maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the
post-employment benefit obligations.

. Income Taxes

The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating
budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for
income taxes, including amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax
positions.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will
be available while recognising deferred tax assets.

. Recognition and measurement of provisions

The recognition and measurement of provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known
at the Balance Sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore
vary from the figure included in other provisions.

Critical judgements required :

a) Application of Ind AS 115:

In making the judgement, the directors considered the detailed criteria for the
recognition of revenue set out in Ind AS 115 and in particular determination of the
nature and timing of satisfaction of performance obligations duly considering the
terms of the contract and the assessment of the amount of revenue to be recognised
based on whether the Company acts as a principal or an agent for the individual
contracts.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
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b) Application of Ind AS 116:
(i) Critical judgements in determining the lease term:

At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement
is or contains a lease. At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains
a lease, the Company separates payments and other considerations required by the
arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of
their relative fair values. If the Company concludes that it is impracticable to separate
the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal
to the fair value of the underlying asset; subsequently, the liability is reduced as
payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using
the Company's incremental borrowing rate. In case of short-term and low-value
leases, all payments under the arrangement are treated as lease payments.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only
included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the
Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of
reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of
the lessee.

(ii) Determination of the discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the
lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

D. Measurement of fair values

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values
for financial instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of
fair values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services,
is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of
Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be
classified.

1.b. Material accounting policies

1.

d.

Property. plant, and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant, and equipment is recognised when it is probable that future economic
benefit associated with the asset will flow to the Company, and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at original cost less accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

i.its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates.

ii. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the management, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over their respective useful lives.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

c. Depreciation

The Company has followed the Straight Line method for charging depreciation on all items
of property, plant, and equipment, at the rates specified in Schedule Il to the Act; these
rates are considered as the minimum rates. If management's technical estimate of the
useful life of the property, plant and equipment is different than that envisaged in Schedule
Il to the Act, depreciation is provided at a rate based on management's estimate of the
useful life. The useful lives followed for various categories of property, plant & equipment
are given below:

Asset Category Useful Life
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers, Office and other equipment 5-6 years

In respect of additions to/deductions from the assets, the depreciation on such assets is
calculated on a pro rata basis from/upto the month of such addition/deduction. Assets
costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase/acquisition.
Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease.

2. Intangible-assets
a. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets, including software, which is acquired by the Company and have finite
useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
———__associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
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c¢. Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line method.
The amortisation period followed for intangible assets are:

Intangible assets Amortisation period

Computer software 3-6 years

3. Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s Balance Sheet
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

a. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurements:

The Company recognises a financial asset in its balance sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value, plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Where the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition is different from its
transaction price, the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is
recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the
fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical
asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data from observable
markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above,
the difference between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and
recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such
gain or loss arises due to change in factor that market participants take into account when
pricing the financial asset.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are
measured at transaction price.

ii. Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with
the below criteria;

® The Company's business model for managing the financial asset and
e The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following
categories:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost
b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOC!')
c) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL')
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a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:

e The Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables,
loans and other financial assets of the Company. Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Under the effective interest rate method, the future cash receipts are discounted to the
initial recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and
the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal/repayments,
if any) of the financial asset over the relevant period of the financial asset to arrive at the
amortised cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortisation under
effective interest method is recognised as interest income over the relevant period of the
financial asset. The same is included under other income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The amortised cost of financial asset is also adjusted for loss of allowance, if any.

b) Financial asset measured at FVOCI:

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

« The Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset, and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payment of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to certain investments in debt instruments. Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are
recognised in the other Comprehensive Income ('OCl'). However, the Company recognises
interestincome and impairment losses and its reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company
may transfer such cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within equity.

c) Financial asset measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
as explained above. This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the
Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting
date. Fair value changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of

similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet)
when any of the following occurs:
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a) The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

b) The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset
and has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset;

c) The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows without material delay to one or more
recipients thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset; or

d) The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of
ownerships and does not retain control over the financial assets.

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise such financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in
the financial asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in b) above for financial assets
measured at FVOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration
received is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Impairment of financial assets:

The Company applies expected credit losses ('ECL') model for measurement and
recognition of loss allowance on the following:

1) Trade receivables and Contract assets

2) Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than Trade receivables and
Contract assets)

3) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

In case of Trade receivables the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount
equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

In case of other assets (listed as {ii) and (iii) above), the Company determines if there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial assets since initial recognition, if
the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month
ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured as recognised as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
(i.e. all cash shartfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which
result from default events that are possible within 12- month from the reporting date.
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ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts
determined by a range of outcome, taking into account the time value of money and other
reasonable information available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on
its portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically
observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated.

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as expense (or
income) in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head 'Other expenses (or Other
Income)".

b. Financial Liabilities
i) Initial recognition and measurements:

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, shall be
subsequently measured at fair value.

Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial recognition is different from its
transaction price, the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is
recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the
fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical
asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through valuation technique that uses data from observable
markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above,
the difference between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and
recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such
gain or loss arises due to a change in factor that market participants take into account when
pricing the financial liability.

ii. Subsequent measurement:

All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to
the initial recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount
and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal
repayments, if any) of the financial liability over the relevant period of the financial liability
to arrive at the amortised cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the
amortization under effective interest method is recognised as interest expense over the
relevant period of the financial liability. The same is included under finance cost in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When the existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender or substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
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the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the

carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash as cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents in the
Balance Sheet comprise of cash on hand, bank balances which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

5. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date it
is ready for its intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporaty investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Finance costs are recorded using the effective interest rate method. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

6. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised only when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources to settle the obligation
and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision is not discounted to its
present value and is determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date. Contingent Assets and related income are recognised when there is virtual
certainty that inflow of economic benefit will arise.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss
on the assets associated with that contract.

7. Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition is based on the delivery of performance obligations and an
assessment of when control is transferred to the customer. Revenue is recognised either
when the performance obligation in the contract has been performed (‘point in time’
recognition) or ‘over time’ as control of the performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.
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The transaction price, being the amount to which the Company expects to be entitled and
has rights to under the contract is allocated to the identified performance obligations. The
transaction price will also include an estimate of any variable consideration based on the
achievement of agreed targets. Variable consideration is not recognised until the
performance obligations are met. Revenue is stated exclusive of Goods and Service tax and
other taxes, which are subsequently remitted to the government authorities. Following are
the revenue recognition principles for major streams of business:

The Revenue from contracts mainly arises from the provision of Data Analytics services,
based on the contract entered with the customer. Revenue from contracts is recognised
over a period of time.

8. Other Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the amount is established.

9. Employee benefits

a. Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities.
Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not
carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis and
are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and
when services are rendered by the employees.

Employee State Insurance: Fixed contributions towards contribution to Employee State
Insurance etc. are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense
based on the amount of contribution required to be made and where services are rendered
by the employees.

b. Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan")
covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as
amended. The Gratuity Plan provides alump sum payment to vested employees at the time
of separation, retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. For
defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of
each annual reporting period by an independent Actuary. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost
is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.
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Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

i.  Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses
on curtailments and settlements);

ii. Netinterest expense or income; and
iii. Remeasurements

The Company presents the service costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee
benefits expense'. Net interest expense or income is recognised under finance costs.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the Company
can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the Company
recognises any related restructuring costs.

c. Long Term Employee Benefits:

The Company accounts for its liability towards compensated absences based on
actuarial valuation done as at the Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. The liability includes the long-term component
accounted on a discounted basis and the short-term component which is accounted
for on an undiscounted basis.

d. Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and
salaries in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Liabilities in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the
Company in respect of services provided by employees upto the reporting date.

10. Foreign currency transactions

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Foreign currency differences are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the

— . transaction.
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11. Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in deferred taxes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

a. Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from net profit as reported in profit or loss because it excludes items of expense
or income that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for tax is calculated using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes
any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

i) has alegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
ii) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and

deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of
future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary

differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on the same taxable Company.

“ia.
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Deferred tax asset / liabilities in respect of temporary differences which originate and
reverse during the tax holiday period are not recognised. Deferred tax assets / liabilities in
respect of temporary differences that originate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period are recognised. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed tax losses
and tax depreciation are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The
tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at the year-end based on the
tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

A new section 115BAA was inserted in the Income Tax Act, 1961, by The Government of
India on September 20, 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 which
provides an option to companies for paying income tax at reduced rates in accordance with
the provisions / conditions defined in the said section. The provisions of MAT are also not
applicable upon exercising this option. The Company has availed this option.

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. The provision for
taxation for the current year has been determined by the Management based on the tax
position to be considered for tax filing and its assessment of the probability of acceptance
of the same by the taxation authorities.

12. Lease (Where the Company is the lessee)

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the
contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability
with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short term leases
(defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets.
For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If
this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed lease
payments (less any lease incentives), variable lease payments, penalties, etc.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Balance sheet.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use asset) whenever:

F
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e the lease term has changed or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

e thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
{(unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used).

e a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a
separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
combination.

The Company has made such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease
liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct

costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased
asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured
under Ind AS 37. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of
the underlying asset.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in Balance sheet. The Company

applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is
impaired.

13.Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the
post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the
post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be
dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share
from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares).
-~ Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.
3 The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share
splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.
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14.Segment Reporting

Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way the
financial information is regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) who is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The CODM considers
the business from both business and product perspective based on the dominant source,
nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The
operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available
and for which operating profit / (loss) accounts are evaluated regularly by the executive
Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting
policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and
segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to
the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue, where applicable, is accounted on the basis of transactions which
are primarily determined based on market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets
and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments
on reasonable basis have been included under unallocated revenue / expenses / assets /
liabilities.

Changes are made to the segment reporting, wherever necessary, based on the change in
the business model duly considering the above factors.

15.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting dates as to whether there is any indication that
any Property, Plant and Equipment or Other Intangible assets or Investment Property or
other class of an asset or Cash Generating Unit ('CGU') may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets or CGU is estimated to determine
the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGlJ
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of the Profit and Loss to the extent,
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to
the assets. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

16.Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date till the date when the financial
statements are approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, provide evidence of
conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is
adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the reporting balance
sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

17.Non-Current Assets held for Sale

Non-Current Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the carrying
amount and fair value less cost of disposal. Non-current assets are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
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continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and
the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify as a completed for recognition as
a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

18.Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information.

19.Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic

The outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing
significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. In assessing the recoverability
of Company's Financial Assets and Non-Financial Assets, the Company has considered
internal and external information. The Company has evaluated impact of this pandemic on
its business operations and based on its review and current indicators of future economic
conditions, there is no significant impact on its financial statements and the Company
expects to recover the carrying amount of all its assets.

20.Goods and Service Tax Input Credit

Goods and Service Input Credit is accounted for in the books during the period in which the
underlying service received is accounted and where there is no uncertainty in
availing/utilizing the same.

21.Related party transactions

Related party transactions are accounted for based on terms and conditions of the
agreement / arrangement with the respective related parties. These related party
transactions are determined on an arms-length basis and are accounted for in the year in
which such transactions occur and adjustments if any, to the amounts accounted are
recognised in the year of final determination.

There are common costs incurred by the Holding Company / Other Group Companies on
behalf of various entities in the group including the Company. The cost of such common
costs are allocated among beneficiaries on appropriate basis and accounted to the extent
debited separately by the said related parties.

22 .Earnings before interest and depreciation and amortisation ("EBITDA")

The Company presents EBITDA in the Statement of Profit and Loss; this is not specifically
required by Ind AS 1. The term EBITDA is not defined in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule
Il allows line items, sub-line items and sub-totals to be presented as an addition or
substitution on the face of the Ind AS Financial Statements when such presentation is
relevant to an understanding of the Company's financial position or performance or to
cater to industry/sector-specific disclosure requirements or when required for compliance
with the amendments to the Companies Act or under the Indian Accounting Standards.

Measurement of EBITDA:

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax,
:;:;-\..__depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) before exceptional items as a separate line item
W
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on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures EBITDA before
exceptional items on the basis of profit/(loss) from continuing operations including other
income. In its measurement, the Company does not include exceptional items,
depreciation and amortisation expense, finance costs, and tax expense.

23.Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs(“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time.
For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or
amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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2 Property, Plant and Equipment (Owned)
Deemed Cost or Cost

2.1 Year ended 31 March 2024 Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Gross Block Accumulated Depraciation at Bloc
As at
Particulars o " As at As at Depreci i on As at As at
01 April 2023 | Additions | Disposals | 5 o o024 |01 April 2023| Expense for the year | Disposals of assets | 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 3‘20";3'“'
Déhice and Other Equipment - - - - - = - - -
Fumaure and Fixtures - e - - - - - - - -
Compulirs 0.93 2 0.50 0.43 0.07 0.07 - 0.43 0.86
Tota 0.93 - 0.50 0,43 0.07 = 0.07 = 0.43 0.86
2,2 Year Ended 31 March 2023
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciatian Net Block
Particulars As at Additions Disposals As at As at Depr d on As at As at
D1 April 2022 P 31 March 2023 |01 April 2022| Expense for the Year Disposals of assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022
Hfice and Other Equipment 2.44 - 2.44 - 2.43 - 2.43 - - 0.01
Furndure and Fixtures 4,79 - 4.79 - 4.79 - 4,79 - - -
Compluters 0.93 - = 0.93 0.07 - - 0.07 0.87 086
Total 8.16 = 7.23 0.93 7.29 = 7.22 0.07 a.87 0.87
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2 Intangible assets (Owned)

Deemed Cost or Cost

3.3

Year ended 31 March 2024

Amount In Rs. Lakhs

Gross Block I Amortisation Net Block
Particulars As at Additions Disposals Slat Amortisation il;‘i’:‘::;::;‘n Qs LoLLS
01 April 2023 P 31 March 2024 |01 April 2023 Expense for the year :’““ 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
(Computer Software 96.30 ! S G5, 30 96.20 - = 96.30 = -
Total 96.30 - - 96.30 96,30 - - 556,30 - -
2.2 Year Ended 31 March 2023 Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation Net Block
Particulars Asat o | IR As at asat Amortisation ‘;'.'s""'":;:: . As at As at As at
01 April 2022 P 31 March 2023 |01 April 2022| Expense for the Year ) ::sets s 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Computer Software 96.30 - - 96.30 96.30 - - 96.30 E: -
Total 96.30 - - 96.30 96.30 - - 96,30 - -
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4 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

(i) Income Tax Expense

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Current Tax:

Current Income Tax Charge 9.38 2.71
Deferred Tax - Profit & Loss Account 15,70 25.87
Total Tax Expense recognised in statement of Profit and Loss (considered for 25.08 32.58
effective tax reconciliation)

Deferred Tax - Other Comprehensive Income (0.44) 0.36

(i) Following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset/(liabilities) presented in the Balance sheet.

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Recognised in profit

Particulars Opening Balance and Loss Recognised in OCI Closing Balance
m n fer i
Employee Benefits 7.02 (5.70) 0.44 1.76
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 15.67 (3.87) = 11.80
Carried forward loss and unabsorbed depreciation 40.63 (5.85) - 34,78
Expected credit loss 0.28 (0.28) = -
Net Tax Asset / (Liabi 63.60 (15.70) 0.44 48.34

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Recognised in profit

Particulars Opening Balance and Loss Recognised in OCI Closing Balance
T fi n
Employee Benefits 11.09 (3.71) (0.36) 7.02
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 27.07 (11.40) - 15.67
Carried forward loss and unabsorbed depreciation 50.85 (10.22) - 40.63
Expected credit loss - 0.28 - 0.28
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 4.82 (4.82) - -
LMet Tax Asset / (Liabilities) 93.83 (29.87) [0.36) 63.60
A t in Rs. Lakhs
. For the year ended For the Year ended
RaFticulars! 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
of items constituting deferred tax iabiliti
Employee Benefits 1.76 7.02
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 11.80 15.67
Carried forward loss and unabsorbed depreciation 34.78 40.63
Expected credit loss - 0.28
(Net Tax Asset/(Linbilities) 48,34 63,60 )

(iii) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in

profit or (loss) is as follows:
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars

31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Profit before tax as per books 100.75 47.23
Applicable income tax rate 25% 25%
Estimated Income Tax Expenses 25.36 11.89
Effect of change in tax rates - (8.73)
Tax effect of prior year items and adjustments (0.28) 29.42
Reported Income Tax Expenses 25.08 32.58
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5 Non = Current Tax Assets (net)
Amount [n Rs. Lakhs

s a As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i 0 13.74 15.48
Tax deducted at source (Net of Provision for taxation Rs, 12,08 Lakhs as on 31 March 2024 (2.71 Lakhs as on 31 March 2023)
Total 13.74 1548

6 Trade Recelvables
Amount |n Rs. Lakhs

Parti s al As at

R 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Trade Receivables- Unsecured. Considered aood 68.38 73.02

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk = 1.11
68,38 74.13

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss - (1.11)

Total 58,38 73.02

Of the above, trade receivables from:

- Related Parties (Refer Note 26) - i

- Others 68.38] 73.02

6.1 The Company is making provisions on trade recelvables based on Expacted Credit Loss (ECL) Model. The reconciliation of ECL is as follows:

Amount in Rs, Lakhs

Asat Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 111 -
Movement In credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at expected credit Iosses/additional provisian - 1.11
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible (1.11) -
Balance at end of the year - 1.12

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit foss
experience and adjusted for forward - looking information. The expectad credit |oss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables (other than related parties) from the date of the invoice and the rates are
given in the provision matrix as per which trade receivables aged (from date of invoice) beyond 3 years are provided entirely, age of 2 to 3 years is provided 50%, age of 1 to 2 years at 25% and no provision is
made upto 1 year. Additional provision, where required, has been made based on specific debtors and other conditions impacting recoverability, The Company believes that the carrying amount of allowance for
expected credit loss with respect to trade receivables is adequate.

There are no trade or other receivabies due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivables due from firms or private companles
respectively in which any director is a director, partner or member, except as disclosed above.

6.2 Trade receivables aoeing schedule:
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Dutstanding for following year from due date of payment
Particulars -
Unbilled Less than i 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
6 months 1 year
13 h '
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 13.41 68.38 - - - - 81.79
considered good
{ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - - - - - - - -
‘which have significant increase In credit
risk
{ili) Undisputed Trade receivables - - - - - - - =
credit impaired
{iv) Dizputed Trade receivabiles - - - - - - - -
considered good
(v} Disputed Trade receivables - - - - - - - -
which have significant increase in credit
risk
{vi)Disputed Trade receivables = - - - - - - -
redit impaired
I 1341 6,38 = - - - A1.78)
Amoynl in Bs, Lakhs
for g year from due date of pay
Partlculars Less than & manths -
Unbllled - -
nbille Py— 1 yaar 1-2 years 2 -3 years Mare than 3 years Total
As at 31 March 2023
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables = 17.25 54.32 15.36 3.34 - = 90.27
cansidered goad
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - - - = 111 - = 111
which have sagruficant increase. in credit
risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - - - - - - - -
aredit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - = - - - - - =
considered good
(v} Disputed Trade receivables - - - - - - - -
which have significant Increase in credit
risk
{vi)Disputed Trade receivables - - - - - - - -
credit impaired
Total 17.25 54.32 15.36 4.45 - - 91.38
1) Trade receivables includes receivables ing from ituting indivi y 5% or more of the total trade receivables as at 31 March 2024 - Rs, 68.38 Lakhs and as at 31 March 2023 -

Rs.74,13 lakhs.
2) The above ageing schedule indudes Unbllled revenue of Rs. 13.41 Lakhs as on 31 March 2024 (17.25 Lakhs as on 31 March 2023). The same has been classified under Other Current Assets.

3) The average credit period on sales of services ranges from 30 to 60 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables up to the due date.
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7

8.1

10

Cash and Cash Equlvalents

Amount in Rs, Lakhs

As at As at
Particulal
artieutars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with Banks
- In current accounts 9,27, 13.69 |
527 13.69
Loans
Ampunt In Rs. Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current

Loans recelvable
Loans to related party - unsecured, cansidered good (Refer no 25 and 26)

395.00

320.00

Total

355.00

330,00

Loan to Related Party is recoverable within 1 year. Interest at the rate of 10.00% per annum for FY 2023-24 (.00% per annum for FY 2022-23) is charged with respect to the said loan receivable on annual

basis.

The following disclosure is made where the loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, either severally or jointly with anyother person, that are

repayable on demand.

Amount of loan or
advance In the nature
Type of borrower of loan outstanding as

at
31 March 2024

Percentage to the
total loans and
advances In the
nature of loans

Amaount of loan or
advance In the
nature of loan

outstanding as at
31 March 2023

Percentage to the
total loans and
advances In the
nature of loans

Related parties 395.00 100% 320.00 100%
95.00 100% 320.00 100%
Other Financial Assets
Amount in Bs. Lakhs
Particulars s 3 —
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Others (U 4 idered Good)
Advance to employees - 0.68
Interest ascrued oo loans 13.63 =
Tatal 13,63 0.68
Other Current Assets (Unsecured. Consldered Good)
Amount In Rs, Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Prepaid Expenses 0.13] -
Advances to suppliers 0.15 =
Unbilled Revenue 13.41 17.25
Total 13.73 12.25 ]
The movement of provision for doubtful advances is as below:
Ammount In Rs, Lakhs
Partlculars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Balance at beginning of the year
Provision created during the year
Provision utilised during the year
Balance at end of the year

15.28

(15.28)
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11

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Equity Share Capital

Amount In Rs. Lakhs

= As at As at
Particul
articulars ay
Authorised
250,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (31 March 2023 - 250,000 Equity Shares) 25.00 25.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
195,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up (31 March 2023 - 195,000 Equity Shares) 19.50 19.50
| Total 19.50 19,50]
Recondiliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Year ended Year ended 31 March 2023
i 31 March 2024
Particulars e . ARt
oun n
No. of Shares in Rs. Lakhs No. of Shares in Rs. Lakhs
At the Beginning of the year 1,95,000 19.50 1,95,000 19.50
Issued during the year - - - -
QOutstanding at the end of the year 1,95,000 19.50 1,95,000 19.50
Shares held by the Holding Company
Particulars 1 24 As.at 31 Mar 2
No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding
Hansa Customer Equity Private Limited (Including Nemi ) 1,895,000 100% 1,95,000 100%
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company
: 1 March 2024 1 reh 21
bkl No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares 9% Holding
{Hansa Customer Eguity Private Limited {Including Nominess) 1.95.000 100% 1.95.000 1.00%]

Restriction of Rights

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder is entitled to one vote per equity share. Dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion ta

their shareholding.
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12 Other Equity

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars As1o8 S at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Securities Premium 521.45 521.45
Retained Earnings 4,29 (70.08)
Total 525.74 451.37

Securities Premium

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars Sslat Elat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 521.45 521.45
Balance at the end of the year 521.45 521.45

Retained Earnings

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars o fSlat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the vear (70.08) (85.79)
Profit for the vear 75.67 14.66
QOther comprehensive (loss)/incomea, net of tax (1.30) 1.05
Balance at the end of the year 4.29 (70.08)

Nature and purpose of reserves
Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of the face value of equity shares, is recognised as securities premium. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to shareholders.

13 Provisions

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars LoIC lat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

!gn g_u“gn;

Provision for emplovee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 22.2) 3.00 18.00
Compensated absences (Refer Note 22.3) 0.30 0.89
Total 3.30 18.89

rren

Provision for emplovee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 22.2) 1.66 8.59
Compensated absences (Refer Note 22.3) 0.27 0.44
Total 1.93 9.03
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14 Trade Payables
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars . e
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Current
Trade Payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 20) = =
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5.96 3.78
- dues to related parties (Refer note 26.2) 3.39 =
Total 9.35 3.78

14 Trade payables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024 Amount in Rs. Lakhs

: Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
T Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years Total
(i) MSME - a - -
(ii) Related parties and others - 3.81 - - 3.81

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - others - - - - -
(v} Unbilled 5.54 - - - 5.54
Total 5.54 3.81 - - 9.35 |

As at 31 March 2023 Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs

Ou nding for fellowin i fr: e ent
Parti
articulars Unbilled Less than 1 year 1- 2 years 2 - 3 years Total
(i) MSME - - - - -
(ii) Related parties and others = 0.55 - b 0.55
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - . - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - others - - - - -
(v) Unbilled 3.23 - - - 3.23
Total 3.23 0.55 = - 3.78

Note : The ageing of the Trade Payables are maintained based on due date of payment

15 Other Current Liabilities
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

. As at As at
Earticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Current

Statutory dues 2,70 2.02

Total 2.70 2.02
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16 Revenue from Operations
Amount in Rs. Lakhs
particular Year ended Year ended
s 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sale of services - Customer and Marketing Analytics Services 244.58 227.71
Total 244.58 227.71
Note:

1.Revenue earned from sale of Service activities represents the services transferred over a period of time to its customers.

2. Revenue from contracts with customers includes revenue from customers individually constituting more than 10% of the total revenue from contracts
with Customers of Rs. 224.44 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2024 and Rs. 227.71 Lakhs for the period ended 31 March 2023.

3. The Company receives payments from customers based upon contractual billing schedules; accounts receivable is recorded when the right to
consideration becomes unconditional. The Company records unbilled revenue when revenue is recognised prior to billing or deferred revenue is recognised
when revenue is recognised subseguent to invoicing. Details of contract assets represented by Trade receivables and Unbilled revenues are disclosed in
Note 6 and Note 10 respectively.

17 Other Income

Amount in Rs, Lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated at fair value through profit /
loss
- Loans to related parties 36.30 24.14
- Income Tax Refunds 0.95 2.90
Provision written back 1.19 -
Total 38.44 27.04
18 Emplovee Benefits Expenses
Amount i . Lakh
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salarles and bonus 158.64 160.55
Contribution to Gratuity (Refer note 22) 2.88 4.04
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer note 22) 3.25 3.62
Staff Welfare Expenses 1.80 1.57
Total 166.67 169.78
19 Other Expenses
Amount in Rs. Lakhs
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Administrative expenses 3.00 6.00
Recruitment expenses * 0.54
Rates and taxes 0.06 1.26
Travelling and Convevance - 0.41
Legal & Professional fees 6.71 25.29
Auditors Remuneration
- Statutory Audit 4,50 2.50
- Out of pocket expenses 0.15 0.04
Software expenses 1.18 0.58
Expected credit loss = 1.11
Provision for doubtful advance - 15.28
Less: Provision for doubtful advance utilised - (15.28)
Total 15.60 37.73
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20 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Based on and to the extent of information received by the Company from the suppliers during the year regarding their status under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the relevant particulars are furnished below:

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

a) The principal ampunt and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of - -
each accounting year,

b) The amount of interast paid by the buyer in terms of saction 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the'amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have - -
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the intersst specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Davalopment Act, 2006.

d) The amount of interast accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting year; and - -

e} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until - =
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose
of dis allowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The above information regarding Micro and Small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the
information available with the Company. Parties under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises are as identified by management and relied upon by auditors.

21 Earnings per share

Basic and Diluted earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
Pagticatars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Basic Earnings per share(Rs,) 38.81 7.52
Diluted Earnings per share(Rs.) 38.81 7.52
Profit for the year used In the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs. in Lakhs) 75.67 14.66
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos in Lakhs) 1.95 1.95
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22 Employee Benefits
22 Defined Cantribution Plan
The Company makes Provident Fund contributions for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund

the benefits, The contributions payable by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the Schemes/Policy as below:

Amount in Rs, Lakhs

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Employer's Contributian ta Provident Fund 3.25 3.62
Total 32,25 3,62

22.2 Defined Benefit Plans

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment af Gratully Act, 1972 or the
Company scheme applicable to the employee. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it it payable to employees on retiremant or on
termination of employment, In case of death while in service, the gratulty is payable Irrespective of vesting. The following table sets sut the status of the Gratuity scheme and the amount
recngnised in the financial statements as per the Actuarial Valuation done by an Independent Actuary:

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Trvestment risk The present value of the defined benafit plan liability Is calculsted using a discount
rate which s determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds.

Interest risk & decrease in the bond Interest rate will increase the plan liablity,

Longewvity risi The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the
best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the pian participants will increase
the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan lability i caloulated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants, As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

In respect of the abave plans, the most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March 2024 by an independent member
firm of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
projected unit credit method,

(a) Amount recagnised in the statement of Profit and Loss in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows :

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

o Year ended Year ended

GarticulaES 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Service Cost
- Current Service Cost 0.99 2.94
- Net interest expense 1.89 1.10
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss (A) 2.88 4.04
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability :
- Actuarial (gains) / loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.13 (2.38)
- Actuarial (gains) / loss arising from experience adjustments 2.08 0.60
- Actuarial (gains) / loss arising from Demographic assumptions {0.47) 0.37
Components of defined benefit gain r ised in other compr ive income (B) 1.74 (1.41)
Total (A)+ (8] 4,62 2,63 |

(i) The current service cost and net interest expense for the year are induded in the "Employee Benefit Expenses" line item in the statement of profit and loss under contribution to
gratuity funds.
(ii} The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is induded in other comprehensive income.

{b) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as fallows :

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

- As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Gratuity:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 4,66 26.59
Surplus/(Deficit) (4.66) (26.59)
Non Current portion of the above (3.00) (18.00)
Current portion of the above (1.66) (8.59)
Total (4.66) (26.59)
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(c) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particul Year ended Year ended
SISICHISES 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 26.59 26,08
Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Service Cost
- Current Service Cost 0.99 2.94
- Interest Cost 1.89 1.10
R ised in Other Compr Income
- Actuarial (Gains) / Loss arising from:
i, Financial Assumptions 0.13 (2.38)
ii, Experience Adjustments 2.08 0,60
iii. Demographic Assumptions (0.47) 0.37
Benefit pavments (26.55) (2.12)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 4.66 26.59

{d) Mavement in fair value of plan assets (unfunded) are as follows :

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Contributions by employer

Mortality

TALM 2012-14 (UIt)*

26,55 212
Benefit payments (26.55) (2.12)
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the year = =
{e) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows :

Particulars Lot LoLl
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discount rate 6.90% 7.10%
Expected rate of salery increase 5.00%| 4.00%
Attrition Rate 45.00% 30.00%
Retirement Age 60 yrs. 58 yrs,

TALM 2012-14 {Ult)*

* Based on India's standard mortality table with madification to reflect the expected changes in mortality/others.

(f) Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase rate and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period while helding all other assumptions constant :

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
1% paoint increase

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Increase /(Decrease) due to :-
Change in the discount rate

(0.11) (0.74)
Change In the attrition rate (0.03) 0.03
Change in the Expected rate of salary increase 0.11 0.80

Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs
1% point decrease

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Increase /(Decrease) due to :-
Change in the discount rate 0.11 0.78
Change in the attrition rate 0,03 (0.04)
Change in the Expected rate of salary inaease {0.11) (0.77)

The sensltivity is performed on the Defined Benefit Obligation at the respective valuation date by maodifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant, There are no
changes from the previous period to the methods and assumptions underlying the sensitivity analyses,

Maturity Profile
The weighted average duration of the obligation is 2 years (March 31, 2023: 2 year) as at the valuation date.

Compensated Absences

The key assumptions used in the computation of provisian for compensated absences as per the actuarial valuation done by an Independent Actuary are as given below:

Particulars i =it
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assumptions
Discount Rate 6.9% 7.1%
Future Salary Increase 5.0%: 4,0%,
Attrition Rate 45%, 30%:

Mortality IALM 2012-14 (UI)*
*Based on India's standard mortality table with medification to reflect the expected changes in mortality/others.
In respect of the above plans, Projected Unit Credit (PUC) actuarial methaod has been used to assess the Plan’s liabilities, including those related to death-in-service benefits,

IALM 2012-14 (Ult)*
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23

23.1

23.2

23.3

23.4

23.5

Financial instruments - Capital Management

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders through the optimization of the debt
and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company has no borrowings and it is 100% equity funded. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Financial Instruments - Fair Values measurements

Accounting classification and fair values

C ies of financial instr

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

: As at As at
Pasticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Financial assets
Measured at Amortised Cost
Current
Trade receivables 68.38 73.02
Cash and Cash equivalents 9.27 13.69
Loans 395.00 320.00
Other Financial Assets 13.63 0.68
Financial Liabilities
Measured at Amortised Cost
Current
Trade Payables 9.35 3.78

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value:
The Management considers that the carrying amount of all the financial asset and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value in the financial statements approximate
fair values and, accordingly, no disclosure of the fair value hierarchy is required to be made in respect of these assets/liabilities,

Fi ial Instr -F ial risk

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of Directors is
respansible for developing and menitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company's risk management palicies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive contral environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

Market risk
The Company is exposed to market risks such as price, interest rate fluctuation and foreign currency rate fluctuation risks, capital structure and leverage risks.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market prices.
Foreign Currency Risk Management:

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuation arises. The Company does not enter into
trade financial instruments including derivative financial instruments for hedging its foreign currency risk. The appropriateness of the risk policy is reviewed periodically with
reference to the approved foreign currency risk management policy followed by the Company.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each reporting period is Rs. Nil as of 31 March 2024
and Rs. Nil as of 31 March 2023. Accordingly, the foreign currency sensitivity analysis for the outstanding balances is not applicable.
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23.6

23.7

23.8

24

Liquidity Risk Management :

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking
facilities by continuously manitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the approved
risk management policy of the Company. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits which carry minimal mark to market rates.

Interest Rate Risk Management :

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company does not
have any debt obligations as on 31 March 2024,

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables :

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is
based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Non-derivative financial liabilities ing amount Total Less than 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to S years
31 March 2024

Trade Pavables 9.35 .33 9,35 -
L Total 5,35 2.35 9.35 = =
Non-derivative financial liabilities Carrying amount Total Less than 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years
31 March 2023

Trade Pavables 3.78 3.78 3.78 - -
| Total 3.78 3.78 3.78 - -

The Company has sufficient current assets comprising of Trade receivables, Cash and cash eguivalents, Other bank balances, Loans and other current financial assets to manage
the liquidity risk, if any, in relation to current financial liabilities. Based on the confirmation from the Holding Company that they will be settling amounts to enable the Company|

to meet its liabilities, the Company believes that it has enough sources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, in case of any deficit.

The following table details the Company's expected realisation of non-derivative financial assets. This table has been drawn up considering the undiscounted cash flows af

financial assets based on the earliest date on which the Company can expect ta receive the same.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Non-derivative financial assets C in n Total Less than 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to5 years
31 March 2024
(i) Trade receivables 68.38 68.38 68.38 = =
{ii) Cash and Cash eauivalents 9.27 9.27 9.27 = T
{iii} Loans 395.00 395.00 395.00 - E
{iv) Other financial assets 13.63 13.63 13.63 =

486.28 486.28 486.28 = =
Non-derivative financial assets Carrying amount Total Less than 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to5 years
31 March 2023
(i) Trade receivables 73.02 73.02 73.02 - -
(i) Cash and Cash equivalents 13.69 13.69 13.69 - -
(iii} Loans 320.00 320.00 320.00 = =
{iv) Other finnncisl assets 0.68 0.68 0.68
Total 407.39 407.39 407.39 - -
Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade receivables

Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the businesses periodically assesses the financial
reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. The Company
establishes an allowance for doubtful receivables that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables (Refer note 6.1).

As at 31 March 2024, the significant concentration of credit risk from accounts receivables from major 3 customers amounted to Rs. 68.38 Lakhs (previous financial year 2022~
23 : Rs. 74.13 Lakhs). The management has done timely assessment of these customers and it has been ensured that these are highly rated customers, The Company is not

dealing with the customers outside India.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Campany maintains its cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and reviews it on ongoing basis. The credit worthiness of such banks is evaluated by the

management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are neither past due nor impaired.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

The Management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

Offsetting of fi ial assets and fi

ial liabilities

The Company does not offset financial assets and financial liabilities.
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24 Ratio Analysis

Ratio For the year ended | For the year ended B Reasons for change
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Yo change more than 25%

Current ratio (times) 35.78 28.64 23%|Refer note 1

Debt- Equity Ratio (times) NA NA NA(-

Debt Service Coverage ratio (times) NA NA NA|-

Return on Equity (Yeage) 15% 3% 396%|Refer note 2

Inventory Turnover ratio (times) NA NA NA|-

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (times) 3.46 2.45 41%|Refer note 3

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (times) 2.38 2.15 11%|Variance less than 25%
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (times) 0.50 0.56 -10% |Variance less than 25%
Net Profit ratio (%age) 31% 6% 416% |Refer note 4

Return on Capital Employed (%age) 20% 12% 75% |Refer note 5

Return on Investment (%age) NA NA NAj-

Formulae used for calculation:

*  Current Ratio (times) = Current Assets / Current Liabilities
Debt-Equity Ratio (times) = Debt [Non-Current and Current Borrowings] / Equity [Equity Share Capital + Other Equity ]

*  Debt service coverage ratio (times) = Earnings available for Debt service/ Debt service
Earning available for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments
like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.
Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments
“Net Profit after tax” means reported amount of “Profit / (loss) for the year” and it does not include items of other comprehensive income.

= Return on Equity (%age) = Net Profits after taxes /Average Shareholder's equity

Inventory Turnover Ratio (times) = Cost of Goods sold/Average Inventory

L Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (times) = Net sales / Average Trade Receivables (Simple Average: Opening + Closing)/2
- Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (times) = Net Purchases / Average Trade Payables (Simple Average: Opening + Closing)/2
. Net Capital Turnover Ratio (times) = Net Sales / Working Capital { Current Assets - Current Liabilities)

= Net Profit Ratio (%age) = Net Profit After Tax / Net Sales

' Return on Capital employed (%age) = EBIT / Capital Employed ( Tangible net worth + Total debt - Deferred Tax Assets )
Return on Investment (%age) = Dividend for the year / opening value of investment

Reason For Variance ( where variance > 25%)

Increase in loans given in current assets and decrease in provision in current liabilities has resulted in increase in Current ratio.
Increase in net profit due to decrease in expenditure resulted in increase in Return on Equity ratio.

Increase in turnover resulted in increase in Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio

Increase in turnover and decrease in expenditure leads to increase in net profit resulted in increase in Net Profit ratio

Increase in earning before interest and tax due to decrease in expenditure resulted in increase in return on capital employed

nhwNE

25 Requirement pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
There has been no investments and guarantees covered u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 which has been provided by the Company.

As at 31 March 2024 Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Purpose for which
. " o Amount of loan given Balances as at loan is proposed to be
Particulars of loan given Namejofithe(entity during the year 31 March 2024 utilised by the
recipient
Inter corporate Loan Hansa Customer Equity 75.00 395.00|Business Purpose

Private Limited

As at 31 March 2023 Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Purpose for which

Particulars of loan given Name of the entity Amount of loan given Balances as at loan is proposed to be

during the year 31 March 2023 utilised by the
recipient
Inter corporate Loan Hansa Customer Equity 320.00 320.00 |Business Purpose

Private Limited
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26  Related Party Transoctions

26.1 Names of Related Partles and Nature of Relatlonship

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2024

Year ended 21 March 2023

Ultimate halding company

R K Swamy Limited (formendy known as & K
SWAMY Private Limited and R.K. Swamy
BAO0 Private Limited)

R K Swamy Limited (formerly known as R K
SWAMY Private Limited and R.K. Swamy
BBDO Private Uimited)

Halding Company

Hanea Customner Equity Private Limited

Hanzs Customer Equity Private Limited

Emtities under common directors (with whom there were transactions during the year)

Hansa Vision India Private Limited

Harsa Vision India Private Umited

Key Management Personnel

Snnivasan K. Swamy - Director

Marasimban . Swamy - Director

riearaj Fratap Sangami - Whole time Director
Sifdharth Swamy - Whole time Director

Snruvasan K. Swamy - Director

Naraumnan K. Swamy - Director

Neeraj Pratap Sangani - Whole time Directar
Siddharth Swamy - Whole time Director

Related party relationships are as identlfied bv the Management and relied upon by the auditors,

26,2 Transactions with the Related Parties

Amount In Rs. Lakhs

Related Party Transaction Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023
Hansa Customer Equity Pnivate Umited Agmisralve exoensel 3.02 16,58
Lecal and o 2.20 -
Interest Income on Loan 36.30 21.24
Loan Given 75.00 320.00
Revenue from Operations 9.34 -
Harsa Vision Private Limited Interest Income - 2.90
Short term advance given - 200.00
Shert term advance received = 200.00
Outstanding balances at the end aof the reporting period Amount In fs. Lakhs
Related Party Transaction As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Hanss Customer Equity Private Limited Trage Pavables 3.39 -
Loans 395.00 320.00
Iolerest i 1363 s
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
There are no contingent liabilities, claims (to the extent not provided for), commitments and other disputes as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Operating Segments

The Company operates in a single reportable operating segment 'Customer and Marketing Analytics Services' and the information reported to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker {CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance focuses on this operating segment. Accordingly, the amounts appearing
in the financial statements relate to this operating segment. Hence there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments',

Revenue from Operations includes revenue arising from two customers, representing more than 10% of the Company's revenue individually.
Wilful Defaulter:
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by anv bank or financial institution or other lenders.

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:
During the current year and previous year the Company has not traded or invested in Crypto / Virtual Currency.

Undisclosed Income:

There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013) are not applicable to the Company since the Company does not satisfy the
eligibility criteria.

Borrowings secured against Current Assets

The company does not have any borrowings from banks or financial institutions. Accordingly the filing of the returns or statements is not applicable to the company.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and Securities Premium :

a. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kinds of funds) to any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b. The Company has not received any fund from any person or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and Companies Act has been complied with for the transactions of the Company during the
year and the transactions are not viclative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering act, 2002 (15 of 2003).

Additional Reaulatory Disclosures

(i) Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company:
The company does not hold any immovable properties whose title deeds are not in the name of the company.

(ii) Loans or Advances:

The company has not granted Loans or Advances except as disclosed in note 8, in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined
under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

(a) repayable on demand; or

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(iii} Intangible Assets under Development:
No assets have been classified as intangible assets under development.

(iv) Details of Benami Property held:

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

{v) Relationship with Struck off Companies:
The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act 1956.

(vi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC):
The company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory year.

{vii) Compliance with number of layers of companies:

The company has complied with the number of [ayers prescribed under clause (B87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017,
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Audit Trail

As per the requirements of rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 the Company shall use only such accounting software for maintaining its books of account
that have a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when
such changes were made and who made those changes within such accounting software. This feature of recording audit trail has not been enabled and operated
throughout the year and the Company is planning to introduce application from next year to meet the regquirements as specified in the requirements of rule 3(1) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014, The company has established and maintained an adequate internal cantrol framework over its financial reporting and based on its
assessment, has concluded that the internal controls for the year ended 31 March, 2024 were effective.

Approval of Financial Statements

In connection with the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors have reviewed the realizable value of all the
current assets of the Company and have confirmed that the value of such assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value at which these are
recognised in the financial statements. In addition, the Board has also confirmed the carrying value of the non-current assets in the financial statements. The Board,
duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statements in its meeting held on 16 May 2024 in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

Events after the reporting period

No Material events have occurred after the Balance sheet date and upto the date of approval of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dsquare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900TN2006PTC060593

Wy -

Narasimban K. Swamy Srinivasan K. Swamy
Director Director
DIN: 00219883 DIN: 00505093

Place :mumbq" Place : mumbq:
Date:‘(”os_a‘;,'zq Date:‘(’_os’“qo‘eLll




